### **AGREEMENT**

Between

The Fair Lawn Board of Education

And

The Fair Lawn Administrative and Supervisory Association

July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2023

Fiscal Year

### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

		<b>PAGE</b>
	Preamble	2
Article I	Recognition	3
Article II	Salaries and Other Compensation	3 - 5
Article III	Insurance Benefits	5 - 6
Article IV	Work Year and Vacations	6 - 8
Article V	Professional Development	8
Article VI	Child Rearing Leave	8 - 9
Article VII	Temporary Leaves of Absence	9 - 10
Article VIII	Convention Attendance	10 - 11
Article IX	Grievance Procedure	11 - 14
Article X	Miscellaneous Provisions	14
Article XI	Terminal Leave Remuneration Program	15
Article XII	Savings Clause	15
Article XIII	Duration	15
	Signatures	16
	Salary Schedules	17

### **PREAMBLE**

This Agreement entered into this 2nd day of May, 2019, by and between the Fair Lawn Board of Education, County of Bergen, Fair Lawn, New Jersey, hereinafter called the "Board", and the Fair Lawn Administrative and Supervisory Association, hereinafter called the "A and S Association".

### WITNESSETH

WHEREAS the Board has an obligation pursuant to NJSA 34:13A-1 et seq. to negotiate with the A & S Association as the representative of employees hereinafter designated with respect to the terms and conditions of employment, AND

WHEREAS the parties have reached certain understandings which they desire to confirm in this Agreement,

In consideration of the following mutual covenants it is hereby agreed as follows:

\* \* \* \* \* \* \* \* \* \* \* \* \*

### **ARTICLE I - RECOGNITION**

1. The Board recognizes the Administrative and Supervisory Association as the exclusive and sole representative for collective negotiations concerning the terms and conditions of employment for all administrative and supervisory personnel including:

High School Principal
Middle School Principal
Vice Principal, High School
Vice Principal, Middle School
Elementary School Principal
Director of Athletics
Subject Supervisor
Assistant Principal, High School
Assistant Principal, Middle School

### But excluding:

Superintendent of Schools
Assistant Superintendent - Education
Assistant Superintendent - Student Services
Business Administrator/Board Secretary
Director of Human Resources

In the event additional administrative positions are established by the Board requiring administrative/supervisory certificates, these positions shall be covered under the agreement.

### <u>ARTICLE II - SALARIES AND OTHER COMPENSATION</u>

- A. The Salary Schedule for Twelve, Eleven and Ten Month Professional Personnel shall be as indicated in the attached schedules.
- B. It shall be clearly understood by both parties that the general salary schedules do not guarantee an automatic salary increase. The Board reserves the right to withhold for inefficiency or other good cause, any and all employment, adjustment and/or increments. (An adjustment is that portion of a salary increase attributable to changes made in the salary schedule and/or movement by an individual from one position to another position on the schedule. An increment is that portion of a salary increase attributable to movement by an individual to a higher step on the schedule for a particular position.) In the event that the Board wishes to exercise such a right, it does hereby agree to follow this procedure:
  - 1. Whenever the Superintendent of Schools decides to submit a recommendation to the Board to withhold a salary adjustment and/or increment, the employee to be so deprived shall be put on notice of this recommendation by April 30.
  - 2. Arrangements shall be made to afford said employee a reasonable opportunity to speak in his own behalf before the Board, within thirty days of notification. Such a meeting before the Board shall not constitute a plenary hearing.
  - 3. The Board will not take necessary formal action until a date subsequent to the above meeting.

- 4. If the resultant action of the Board is to withhold an adjustment and/or increment, it shall, within ten days of said action, give written notice of such action, together with the reasons therefore, to the employee concerned.
- 5. Where an employee's increment and/or adjustment has been withheld, at the sole discretion of the Board of Education the employee may subsequently be placed on a step of the current guide which he would have occupied had the increment or adjustment not been withheld.
- C. Salary credit for experience shall be granted at the beginning of each school year. All members of the unit not at maximum will be moved one (1) step on the salary guide annually until they have reached maximum on the guide.
- D. Effective July 1, 2004, an annual stipend of \$2,000 shall be established to recognize any member holding a Doctorate degree.
- E. Placement on the salary schedule shall be not less than the minimum or more than the maximum.
- F. Those administrative and supervisory positions set forth within this Agreement not covered by New Jersey Statutes shall enjoy the status of tenure in Fair Lawn as if the position were covered by New Jersey Statutes.
- G. Effective July 1, 2004, whenever a new employee shall accept employment as a member in the Fair Lawn School District, his/her initial placement on the salary schedule shall be at such point as may be agreed upon by the member and as recommended by the Superintendent of Schools for the approval of the Fair Lawn Board of Education. It is understood that a newly hired employee will be placed on a salary step that is commensurate with his or her prior administrative/supervisory experience.
- H. Should a current member have a change in assignment and/or be promoted into another position within the contract, said employee shall remain on the same salary guide schedule as presently paid.
- I. When a pay day falls on or during a school holiday, break or weekend, administrators shall, if possible, receive pay checks on the last previous working day.
- J. Employees covered under this Agreement shall be compensated at a mileage rate to be adjusted to the prevailing rate in the district, for the use of his/her own automobile when it is used in the performance of his/her job. Compensation for the use of the individual's automobile shall be limited to automobile use to attend conferences and/or visitation outside the district with mileage calculated from school assignment to conference/visitation site and return.
- K. That pay for days worked outside the contracted work year for those who are not Twelve month employees shall be as follows:
  - 1. Per Diem rates will be computed as 1/210 of the individual's current applicable salary on the guide for 11-month employees and 1/200 for 10-month employees.
  - 2. The above per diem rate shall be for workdays of four (4) hours or more. If less than four (4) hours are worked the per diem rate shall be one-half.

- 3. Acceptance of such work may be refused by the employee without prejudice.
- L. Employees required to accompany students on an over-night field trip shall be compensated an additional one hundred and fifty dollars (\$150) per night.
- M. Effective July 1, 1997, every employee who completes 8 continuous years of service in the Fair Lawn School District in an administrative or supervisory position covered by this Agreement and who continues to be a member of the FLASA collective negotiations unit will, commencing July 1 of the school year following the completion of 8 years of service and every school year thereafter, receive a salary payment of \$1,300. in addition to the salary paid pursuant to the salary guide.

Upon completion of 16 years of continuous service in an administrative or supervisory position covered by this Agreement, each employee will receive a salary payment of \$2,000. in addition to the salary paid pursuant to the salary guide.

### ARTICLE III - INSURANCE BENEFITS

### A. Health Insurance

- 1. Effective July 1, 2012, insurance coverage for all unit members shall be changed to the New Jersey School Employees Health Benefits Program. Any benefit changes imposed thereafter by the School Employees Health Benefits Program (SEHBP) shall become the new standard level of coverage and the Board shall not be obligated to furnish any additional insurance or otherwise provide additional compensation. Employees may select any available plan without penalty.
- 2. All employees enrolled in the SEHBP will receive a prescription plan provided. No additional prescription plan shall be available to the employee while enrolled in the SEHBP.
- 3. The Board shall pay the premium cost of Health Insurance coverage as noted above, for the employee and for any dependents in accordance with New Jersey State Law. Both parties agree to begin any employee contributions required by law.

### B. Dental/ Long Term Disability/Optical

- 1. For the 2019 through 2023 school years, the Board shall cover the annual premium cost for provisions of dental and optical insurance coverage. Such payment will be used only to keep the Dental and Optical Plans at the 2018-2019 benefit levels.
- 2. Effective July 1, 2012, the Board of Education will continue to make available a long-term disability plan to all eligible employees. The premium for this long term disability plan will be paid for by the employee.
- C. Where an employee is covered by a long-term disability policy and where the member has accumulated sick leave or extended sick leave available to the expiration of the waiting period, the following shall apply:
  - 1. Any member who has a disablement that continues through the "waiting period" shall file a claim for benefits under the terms of the insurance policy maintained pursuant to this section, no later than 5 days immediately following the expiration of the "waiting period".

- 2. Any insurance proceeds received or entitled to be received by any member, under the terms of the insurance policy maintained pursuant to this section will be assigned or otherwise paid by him or her to the Board, to the extent that the member uses any or all of his or her accumulated or extended sick leave for the coincident period covered by the proceeds.
- 3. Payment of accumulated or extended sick pay, and the right to retain such payments, shall be conditional upon the member complying with all provisions of this section.
- 4. The intent of these provisions is that the Board will receive the disability insurance proceeds paid under this section for the period covered by any accumulated or extended sick leave payments, and that its sick pay expenditures will be reduced accordingly.
- D. A physical examination at the expense of the current District Health Insurance Program shall be provided to all Administrative and Supervisory personnel in accordance with the following schedule and subject to the following conditions:

Up to age 50 every other year

Age 50 and over annually

The extent of the examination shall be determined by the Board of Education. In the event that the current Health Insurance Program does not cover the cost of this examination in full, the Board of Education will reimburse the employee for any co-pay cost incurred.

### **ARTICLE IV - WORK YEAR AND VACATIONS**

### A. Twelve Month Employees

1. Unless requested to work by the Superintendent of Schools, all twelve (12) month employees covered by this Agreement shall be entitled to a full December break, all holidays listed on the Board's school calendar, as well as independence Day and Labor Day. If a twelve (12) month employee is requested to work during any of the December break time or holidays, he/she shall be entitled to such compensatory time as may be approved by the Superintendent of Schools.

The total number of vacation days within any school year for employees hired on or after July 1, 1997 shall be twenty (20) days, upon completion of one (1) year of employment, plus the full December break. Upon completion of two (2) years of employment, employees hired on or after July 1, 1997 shall be entitled to twenty (20) days of vacation, plus the full December break. Upon completion of three (3) years of employment, employees hired on or after July 1, 1997 shall be entitled to twenty (20) days of vacation, plus the full December break. Upon completion of four (4) years of employment, employees hired on or after July 1, 1997, shall be entitled to twenty-five (25) days of vacation, plus the full December break. Vacation days for administrators employed after June 30, 1994, must be taken after the first full year of employment. Exceptions must be approved by the Superintendent of Schools. Upon termination of employment for any reason, unused vacation will be paid at the current per diem rate. For those employed during a school year, vacation days will be prorated and must be taken in the following year, beginning July 1<sup>st</sup>.

These 20 or 25 days shall be taken during the summer and/or the winter and spring break periods. All vacation arrangements must have the prior approval of the Superintendent of Schools.

Unless prior approval has been granted by the Superintendent, the High School shall be provided with building coverage by having at least one administrator during vacation periods, specifically any of the following: Principal, Vice Principal, or Director of Athletics.

Vacation days shall not be cumulative from one school year to another. Exceptions may be made if an Administrator or Supervisor is requested to work during a vacation period by the Superintendent of Schools.

In such cases, the Administrator so affected may be permitted, at the discretion of the Superintendent of Schools, to apply his unused vacation days to a mutually agreed upon time within the same school year or to the following year. In no event shall unused vacation days be accumulated beyond the school year following the initial request to work during a vacation period.

All vacation plans must be submitted to the Superintendent for approval ten (10) school days prior to a vacation period, which occurs during the school year and one month prior to the summer vacation period. Any exception to this Article must have prior approval of the Board of Education.

If and when a twelve (12) month position is changed to a ten (10) month position, it is understood that the person affected by such a change shall be entitled to compensation for any and all earned vacation time on a pro rata basis.

If and when a twelve (12) month position is changed to an eleven (11) month position, or an eleven (11) month position is changed to a ten (10) month position, it is understood that the person affected by such a change shall be entitled to compensation for any and all earned vacation time on a pro rata basis.

All twelve (12) month employees shall receive twelve (12) sick days per year which shall be credited in accordance with the customary district practice.

### B. Eleven Month Employees

- 1. The Work year for an eleven (11) month employee shall be 209 days. The 209 days shall include (a) the teacher's work year of up to 186 days, (b) the five (5) days immediately before the teachers' work year, and (c) the five (5) days immediately after the teachers' work year.
- 2. The employee and the Superintendent of Schools will develop a summer schedule, to be mutually agreed upon, to complete the remaining thirteen (13) days. The Superintendent of Schools will prepare the work calendar for eleven (11) month employees in accordance with Section D below.
- 3. The following employees are eleven (11) month employees:
  - a. Elementary School Principals
  - b. Vice Principals Middle Schools\*
    Subject Supervisors\*
  - 5. All eleven (11) month employees shall receive eleven (11) sick days per year which shall be credited in accordance with the customary district practice.

### C. Ten Month Employees

1. The work year for a ten (10) month employee shall be 196 days. The 196 days shall include (a) the teachers' work year of up to 186 days, (b) the five days immediately before the teachers' work year and (c) the five days immediately after the teachers' work year.

In addition to the regular work year, any ten (10) month employee may be assigned to work additional days (called Project Days) by the Superintendent, to perform certain special tasks or studies. Any such days will be attached either immediately before the days in subsection C1 (b) above or after the days in subsection C1 (c) above. The Superintendent will prepare the Project Day assignments for each school year in accordance with Section D below. Acceptance of such work may be refused by the employee without prejudice.

2. Assistant Principals at the High School and Middle Schools are ten (10) month employees.

All ten (10) month employees shall receive ten (10) sick days per year which shall be credited in accordance with the customary district practice.

D. The Superintendent will develop a tentative work calendar, in consultation with the Association, and transmit it to the Association on or before March 15 (but in no event later than April 1) preceding the commencement of the applicable school year. If there is an emergency situation (as determined by the Superintendent in his discretion), the Superintendent may modify the work calendar after the deadline of the preceding sentence but must notify the Association.

### ARTICLE V - PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

- A. A Professional Development Fund shall be set up for each employee to be used for the following items only:
  - 1. Dues to professional organizations except NEA or NJEA.
  - 2. Tuition for courses in the area of present employment.
- B. Each employee's fund will be limited to the following amounts:
  - 1. 2019-2023 \$975.
- C. No monies may be carried over to another fiscal year.

### ARTICLE VI - CHILD REARING LEAVE

- 1. The Board of Education shall grant a leave of absence for child rearing, herein defined as being during child's first year after birth, without pay, to any member of the Administrative and Supervisory staff. Child rearing leaves for non-tenure personnel shall not extend beyond the school year in which the leave commenced, and under no circumstances shall a staff member attain tenure while on child rearing leave.
- 2. The Board of Education shall grant a leave of absence without pay for adoption of an elementary age child from birth up to the end of the school year in which the child attains the age of six which shall

commence upon receipt of de facto custody of said child or earlier if necessary to fulfill requirements of the adoption. Such adoption leaves for non-tenure personnel shall not extend beyond the school year in which the leave commenced and under no circumstances shall a staff member attain tenure while on an adoption leave.

- 3. Either of the above leaves shall be for one full year for the first leave and one full year for each consecutive leave. If an employee returns to work for a full year after the first leave, he/she is eligible for another one full year leave.
- B. Upon return from leave granted pursuant to Section A of this article, an administrator or supervisor shall be placed at the proper step of the current salary schedule. Time spent on said leave shall not be credited towards the fulfillment of the time requirements for acquiring tenure. No administrator or supervisor shall receive increment credit for time spent on a leave granted pursuant to this article.
- C. All benefits to which an administrator or supervisor was entitled at the time his/her leave of absence in Fair Lawn Public Schools commenced, including unused sick leave accumulated in Fair Lawn, shall be restored to him/her upon his/her return.
- D. Any administrator or supervisor on extended leave must notify the Superintendent of Schools, or his designee, in writing by April 1st of his/her intention to return the following fiscal/school year.
- E. All extensions or renewals of extended leaves of absence shall be applied for in writing by April 1st, and, if granted by the Board, as indicated by its official Minutes of Public Meeting, shall be in writing.
- F. For the purpose of defining the duration of leave in this Article, if more than ninety (90) school days remain from the effective date of the leave until the end of the school year; this period of time shall be considered to be one full year. If ninety (90) or fewer days remain, this period of time shall be considered to be zero years.

### ARTICLE VII - TEMPORARY LEAVES OF ABSENCE

### A. Temporary Leave of Absence with Pay

The Superintendent of Schools, or his/her designee, shall grant to any regularly employed person emergency leave for the following reasons:

- 1. Death in the family:
  - a. Immediate family 5 days per occurrence
    Husband or Wife
    Children
    Mother or Father
    Sisters or Brothers
    Mother-in-law or Father-in-law
    Daughter-in-law or Son-in-law
    Anyone living in the same domicile at time of death
    Grandchildren
  - b. Death of a relative not a member of the immediate family 1 day per occurrence.

Other family members - 3 days per occurrence to be taken consecutively Grandmother or Grandfather Grandmother-in-law or Grandfather-in-law Sister-in-law or Brother-in-law

### 2. Personal Business/Illness in the Family - 3 days

- a. Personal Business Days shall be used for those things which cannot be done by the employee during other than normal school hours. The Superintendent reserves the right to require verification of same in order to insure proper and intended use of this provision
- b. Personal Business Days may be used by the employee for reasons of illness in the immediate family or illness of one living in the same domicile.
- c. Notwithstanding the above, Personal Business/Illness in the Family days not utilized during the employee's work year shall accrue as additional sick days.
- d. In addition to such accrual as unused sick leave, all personal business days unused during any year shall accrue as terminal leave days referred to under ARTICLE X.
- e. The accrual referred to in 2c and 2d above shall begin in the 1986-87 school year.
- 3. Time necessary for persons called into temporary active duty of any unit of the U.S. Reserves or the State National Guard, provided such obligation cannot be fulfilled on days when school is not in session. An administrator/supervisor shall be paid his/her regular pay to supplement any difference to any pay he/she receives from the state or federal government.

### B. Temporary Leaves of Absence Without Pay

Requests for absence not within the limitations of subsections A.1, A.2, and A.3 may be approved without pay by the Superintendent of Schools for a maximum of three (3) days per Administrative and Supervisory member per year.

- C. Other leaves of absence with or without pay may be granted by the Board upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools.
- D. Leaves taken pursuant to Section A.1 above shall be in addition to any sick leave to which the Administrative and Supervisory member is entitled.

### ARTICLE VIII - CONVENTION ATTENDANCE

- A. In order to encourage employees to participate actively in meetings of local, county, state and national professional organizations, exclusive of any convention of N.E.A. and N.J.E.A., employee expenses incurred in attendance shall be reimbursed as follows:
  - 1. An allowance of \$250.00 per day for food and lodging to a maximum of \$1,000.00 per person, plus the cost of transportation to a maximum of \$850.00 per person. Where airplane transportation is appropriate, the allowance may be applied only to tourist or coach class.

- B. Requests for permission to attend professional meetings are subject to the approval of the Board of Education. Approval is at the discretion of the Board and may be withheld for reasons such as, but not limited to, budget and impact of time away from school.
- C. Within ten (10) school days following the meeting(s), the employee shall file with the Superintendent of Schools a report of the conference with recommendations for use, if any, by employees and the Board of Education.

### ARTICLE IX - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

### A. DEFINITION

- 1. A "Grievance" is a claim by an employee or the Association based upon the interpretation, application or violation of this agreement, policies or administrative decisions affecting terms and conditions of employment.
- 2. A Grievance to be considered under this procedure must be initiated by an individual; by the completion and execution of the necessary forms within thirty (30) days of the time the individual knew or should reasonably have known of its occurrence. Failure to act within said thirty (30) days shall be deemed an abandonment of the grievance.
- 3. An "aggrieved individual" is a person or persons who has/have executed the necessary forms and filed the grievance.
- 4. A "party in interest" means an aggrieved individual, his immediate superior, and/or any staff member in the chain of administration below the Superintendent or his designee.
- 5. The term "representative" shall constitute the person designated by the Association to represent the Association and/or the aggrieved individual at the grievance proceedings. Nothing herein shall prevent the aggrieved individual from representing himself.

  When an individual refuses representation by the Association, the Association shall have the right to be present and present its views at all stages of the grievance.
- 6. The term grievance and these grievance procedures shall not apply to the following:
  - a. To a case arising out of official action of the Board of Education, except as such action shall apply to any Article of this Agreement.
  - b. The failure or refusal of the Board to renew the contract of any non-tenure member of this unit.
  - c. Any case in which the employee is claiming tenure under the provisions of R.S. 18A:28-5 where charges have been brought against such employee pursuant to the provisions of the Tenure Employees Hearing Law R.S. 18A:6-10 et seq.

### B. PURPOSE

The purpose of this procedure is to secure at the lowest possible level, solutions to the problems relating to employment which may from time to time arise affecting members of this unit. Both parties agree that

these proceedings will be kept as informal and confidential as may be appropriate at any level of the procedures.

### C. PROCEDURES

### 1. LEVEL ONE

Any individual who has a grievance shall discuss it first with his immediate superior in an attempt to resolve the matter informally at that level.

### 2. LEVEL TWO

If, as a result of the discussion, the matter is not resolved to the satisfaction of the individual within five (5) school days, he may set forth his grievance in writing to his immediate superior on the grievance forms provided. The immediate superior shall communicate his decision to the individual in writing, with reasons, within three (3) school days of receipt of the written grievance.

### 3. LEVEL THREE

The individual, no later than five (5) school days after receipt of the immediate superior's decision may appeal the immediate superior's decision to the Superintendent of Schools or his designee. The appeal to the Superintendent or his designee must be made in writing reciting the matter submitted to the immediate superior as specified above and his dissatisfaction with the decision previously rendered, furnishing the specific reasons for dissatisfaction. The Superintendent or his designee shall attempt to resolve the matter as quickly as possible, but within a period not to exceed ten (10) school days. The Superintendent or his designee shall communicate his decision in writing with the reasons to the aggrieved individual.

### 4. LEVEL FOUR

If the aggrieved individual is not satisfied with the disposition of his grievance at Level Three, or if no decision has been rendered within ten (10) school days after the grievance was delivered to the Superintendent or his designee, he may within five (5) school days after a decision by the Superintendent or his designee or fifteen (15) school days after the grievance was delivered to the Superintendent or his designee, whichever is sooner, requesting in writing that his grievance be forwarded to the Board of Education.

The Board of Education shall act on the grievance and shall inform the aggrieved individual and the Superintendent or his designee of the decision reached within twenty (20) school days of its receipt by the Board.

### 5. LEVEL FIVE

- If the aggrieved individual is not satisfied with the disposition of his grievance at Level Four, or if no decision has been rendered within twenty (20) school days after the grievance was received by the Board of Education, he may within five (5) school days after a decision by the Board of Education, or twenty (20) school days after receipt of the grievance by the Board, whichever is sooner, request in writing that the Association submit his grievance to binding arbitration. If the Association determines that the grievance is meritorious, it may submit the grievance to binding arbitration within fifteen (15) school days after receipt of a request by the aggrieved individual. The Superintendent or his designee shall be so notified in writing.
- ii. Within five (5) school days after such written notice of submission to binding arbitration, the

Board and the Association shall attempt to agree upon a mutually acceptable arbitrator and shall obtain a commitment from said arbitrator to serve. If the parties are unable to agree upon an arbitrator or to obtain such a commitment within a specified period, a request for a list of arbitrators may be made to the P.E.R.C. The parties shall then be bound by the rules established by AAA in the selection of an arbitrator.

- iii. The arbitrator so selected shall confer with the parties within ten (10) school days of his selection. He shall limit himself to the issue(s) presented to him, and shall be without authority to make any decision which requires the commission of an act prohibited by law.
- iv. The arbitrator shall ask that all supportive evidence be placed before him. He shall issue a decision within ten (10) school days of the last meeting with the parties. The arbitrator's decision shall be in writing and shall set forth his findings, reasoning, and conclusions on the issue(s) submitted. Copies of the arbitrator's decision shall be issued to the aggrieved individual, the Association and the Board, and shall be binding on the parties.

### D. COST FOR BINDING ARBITRATION

The cost for the services of the arbitrator, including per diem expenses, if any, and actual and necessary travel, subsistence expenses and the cost of the hearing room shall be borne equally by the Board and the Association. Any other expenses incurred shall be paid by the party incurring same.

### E. MISCELLANEOUS

- 1. If more than one employee files the same grievance, the Association may request, in writing addressed to the Superintendent or his designee, that the procedures set forth in Levels One and Two be waived and the matter be presented de novo at Level Three and the grievance procedure continue as provided thereafter. The Superintendent or his designee must furnish an answer within five (5) school days. If the reply is in the negative, the employees will continue with these procedures commencing with Level One.
- 2. With the exclusion of Level One, all decisions rendered shall be in writing setting forth the decision and the reasons therefore and shall be transmitted promptly to all parties in interest and to the Association.
- 3. No reprisals of any kind shall be taken by the Board or by any member of the administration against any party in interest, any representative, any member of the Association or any other participant in the grievance procedure by reason of such participation.
- 4. Forms for filing grievances, serving notices, taking appeals, making reports and recommendations, and other necessary documents shall be prepared jointly by the Superintendent or his designee and the Association and given appropriate distribution so as to facilitate operation of the grievance procedure.
- 5. All meetings and hearings under this procedure shall not be conducted in public and shall include only such parties in interest and their designated representatives, heretofore referred to in this Article.
- 6. Any party in interest may request and be entitled to have a representative present at any meeting or hearing in which he is required to be present or furnish testimony or information relative to a grievance.

- 7. Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance within the specified time limits, unless notice by either party due to illness, shall be deemed to be acceptance of the decision rendered at that step.
- 8. It is understood that individuals shall, during and notwithstanding the pending of any grievance, continue to observe all assignments and applicable rules and regulations of the Board until such grievance and any effect thereof shall be fully determined.
- 9. Since it is important that grievances be processed as rapidly as possible, the number of days indicated at each level should be considered as a maximum and every effort should be made to expedite the process.
- 10. The grievance procedure shall proceed as set forth hereinabove notwithstanding that school is not in session due to summer vacation, in which event all references herein to "school days" shall mean "weekdays".

### ARTICLE X - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

- A. Any tenured employee, Administrative and Supervisory Association member, may be granted five additional days of sick leave per year at full pay, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools.
- B. It is also agreed that the Superintendent of Schools will not recommend to the Board any change in the Administrative or Supervisory positions, as currently constituted, without his prior discussion with the Administrative and Supervisory Association. Final recommendations to the Board will be made by the Superintendent of Schools.
- C. After the Agreement is completed, it shall be reproduced at the joint expense of both parties within sixty (60) calendar days computed from date of the Agreement execution. Adequate numbers of copies shall be furnished both parties or on the district internal website.
- D. The Board of Education and the Fair Lawn Administrative and Supervisory Association agree to commence negotiating the contract for the succeeding school year not later than February 1st of the year in which this agreement expires. Succeeding meetings will be held on a monthly basis, unless other meeting arrangements are mutually agreed upon, until agreement on a contract has been reached.
- E. If no successor Agreement to this contract has been reached by the termination date of this contract, the provisions of this contract shall continue in force until such time as agreement on a new contract has been reached.
- F. All persons covered by this contract shall be notified in writing of their tentative assignments for the next school year not later than April 30th of the current school year.
- G. The Association shall have the privilege of using school facilities and office equipment at reasonable times, when such office equipment is not otherwise in use. The Association shall provide all materials and supplies. The Association shall be responsible for all reasonable damages incurred and shall be subject to the provisions of Board Policy No. 7510. In all cases prior permission of the Superintendent or his designee is required. Such permission is not to be unreasonably denied.

### ARTICLE XI - TERMINAL LEAVE REMUNERATION PROGRAM

- A. Upon retirement of a covered employee, for reasons other than unsatisfactory performance, age 55 or over, who has been continuously employed by the Fair Lawn Board of Education for at least ten (10) years, a terminal leave payment shall be made equal to the employee's number of accumulated terminal leave days, multiplied by the daily accumulation rate of \$100.00 per day. The maximum payment under this Article shall be \$15,000.00.
  - When continuous employment is interrupted by non-reappointment due to reduction in force and the administrator or supervisor is subsequently rehired, said service shall be considered as if it were continuous.
- B. The accumulated terminal leave days shall be 100% of the unused regular sick days plus the applicable personal business days as provided in Article VI.
- C. All employees covered by this Agreement are eligible to participate in this program. Employees employed for less than a full year shall accumulate a pro-rated share of terminal leave days.
- D. Payment shall be made in September or December in the same calendar year of the retirement in a lump sum, at the option of the employee.
- $\mathbf{E}_{\mathbf{r}}$
- 1. In the event of death of the terminated employee, prior to collecting the full benefits, his or her estate shall be paid the remainder.
- 2. If notification of termination has been given during the school year in which termination is to occur, and death occurs after notification but before termination the employee's estate shall be paid inculcated benefits.
- F. In the event of death of an employee who meets the requirements of age and years of service in the district, his/her estate shall be entitled to all benefits as outlined above.
- G. If an employee submits his termination/resignation notice after January 1 of the school year in which such notice is to take effect or such termination/resignation is to take effect prior to June 30 of that school year, then such individual shall be ineligible for the terminal leave payment. The only exception to the preceding sentence is resignation for reasons of illness.

### ARTICLE XII - SAVINGS CLAUSE

If any provision of this Agreement is, or shall be, at any time contrary to law, then such provision shall not be applicable, performed or enforced. In such event, all other provisions of this Agreement shall continue in effect.

### **ARTICLE XIII - DURATION**

The provisions of this Agreement will be effective as of July 1, 2019, and will remain in full force and effect until June 30, 2023, subject to the right of the Board and the Association to negotiate for a modification of this Agreement. If no successor agreement is reached by June 30, 2023, the terms and conditions of this agreement shall remain in full force and effect until such time as a successor agreement is reached.

By Call School School Board of Education	Date 12-7-2020
Attest:	
By July Sulfur Secretary, Board of Education	Date 2/7/2020
Fair Lawn Administrative and Sup	ervisory Association:
By Jany Han President, Pair Lawn Administrativ	Date 2/3/20 ve and Supervisor Association
Attest:	
By A Caretary, Fair Lawn Administrativ	Date 12-03.2020 re and Supervisory Association

The School District of Fair Lawn, New Jersey:

2019-2020 SALARY SCHEDULE (1)

			4C 0202-6T02	ZUIS-ZUZU SALANT SCHEDULE (1)			
			Elementary	Athletic	Subj. Supvsr. 11 Mo.	Asst. Princ.	Asst. Princ.
	High School	Middle School	Principal 11 Mo.	Director	VP, Middle School	High School	Middle School
Step	Principal 12 Mo.	Principal 12 Mo.	VP, HS 12 Mo.	12 Mo.	11 Mo.	10 Mo.	10 Mo.
		8					
2							
33							
4							
2	New Guide Starts Here						
9	\$169,932	\$162,526	\$159,494	\$156,037	\$151,996	\$143,766	\$139,175
7	\$172,160	\$164,847	\$161,642	\$158,047	\$153,843	\$145,690	\$140,820
œ	\$174,388	\$167,168	\$163,790	\$160,057	\$155,690	\$147,614	\$142,465
6	\$176,616	\$169,489	\$165,938	\$162,067	\$157,537	\$149,538	\$144,110
10	\$178,844	\$171,810	\$168,086	\$164,077	\$159,384	\$151,462	\$145,755
11	\$181,072	\$174,131	\$170,234	\$166,087	\$161,231	\$153,386	\$147,400
12	\$183,300	\$177,158	\$172,382	\$168,097	\$162,100	\$155,310	\$149,045

## NEW 2019-2020 SALARY SCHEDULE (2)

			Elementary	Athletic	Subj. Supvsr. 11 Mo.	Asst. Princ.	Asst. Princ.
	High School	Middle School	Principal 11 Mo.	Director	VP, Middle School	High School	Middle School
Step	Principal 12 Mo.	Principal 12 Mo.	VP, HS 12 Mo.	12 Mo.	11 Mo.	10 Mo.	10 Mo.
1	\$151,590	\$144,214	\$143,520	\$139,413	\$135,905	\$128,573	\$123,607
7	\$153,930	\$146,470	\$145,195	\$141,232	\$137,635	\$130,339	\$125,312
n	\$156,270	\$148,726	\$146,870	\$143,051	\$139,365	\$132,105	\$127,017
4	\$158,610	\$150,982	\$148,545	\$144,870	\$141,095	\$133,871	\$128,722
S	\$160,950	\$153,238	\$150,220	\$146,689	\$142,825	\$135,637	\$130,427
9	\$163,290	\$155,494	\$151,895	\$148,508	\$144,555	\$137,403	\$132,132
7	\$165,630	\$157,750	\$153,570	\$150,327	\$146,285	\$139,169	\$133,837
∞	\$167,970	\$160,006	\$155,245	\$152,146	\$148,015	\$140,935	\$135,542
6	\$170,310	\$162,262	\$156,920	\$153,965	\$149,745	\$142,701	\$137,247
10	\$172,650	\$164,518	\$158,595	\$155,784	\$151,475	\$144,467	\$138,952
11	\$174,990	\$166,774	\$160,270	\$157,603	\$153,205	\$146,233	\$140,657
12	\$177,330	\$169,030	\$161,945	\$159,422	\$154,935	\$147,999	\$142,362

2020-2021 SALARY SCHEDULE (1)

			2020-2021 SALA	2020-2021 SALARY SCHEDULE (1)			
			Elementary	Athletic	Subj. Supvsr. 11 Mo.	Asst. Princ.	Asst. Princ.
	High School	Middle School	Principal 11 Mo.	Director	VP, Middle School	High School	Middle School
Step	Principal 12 Mo.	Principal 12 Mo.	VP, HS 12 Mo.	12 Mo.	11 Mo.	10 Mo.	10 Mo.
2							
m							
4							
2	New Guide Starts Here						
9	\$171,191	\$164,165	\$161,306	\$158,248	\$154,109	\$145,928	\$141,038
7	\$173,419	\$166,486	\$163,454	\$160,258	\$155,956	\$147,852	\$142,683
∞	\$175,647	\$168,807	\$165,602	\$162,268	\$157,533	\$149,776	\$144,328
6	\$177,875	\$171,128	\$167,750	\$164,278	\$159,650	\$151,700	\$145,973
10	\$180,103	\$173,499	\$169,898	\$166,288	\$161,497	\$153,624	\$147,618
11	\$182,331	\$175,770	\$172,046	\$168,298	\$163,344	\$155,548	\$149,263
12	\$184,559	\$178,000	\$174,194	\$170,308	\$164,225	\$157,472	\$150,908

# NEW 2020-2021 SALARY SCHEDULE (2)

			Elementary	Athletic	Subj. Supvsr. 11 Mo.	Asst. Princ.	Asst. Princ.
	High School	Middle School	Principal 11 Mo.	Director	VP, Middle School	High School	Middle School
Step	Principal 12 Mo.	Principal 12 Mo.	VP, HS 12 Mo.	12 Mo.	11 Mo.	10 Mo.	10 Mo.
1	\$152,279	\$144,500	\$145,805	\$141,111	\$138,135	\$130,767	\$125,419
7	\$154,752	\$145,931	\$147,480	\$142,930	\$139,865	\$132,533	\$127,124
m	\$157,225	\$148,387	\$149,155	\$144,749	\$141,595	\$134,299	\$128,829
4	\$159,698	\$150,843	\$150,830	\$146,568	\$143,325	\$136,065	\$130,534
2	\$162,171	\$153,299	\$152,505	\$148,387	\$145,055	\$137,831	\$132,239
9	\$164,644	\$155,755	\$154,180	\$150,206	\$146,642	\$139,597	\$133,944
7	\$167,117	\$158,211	\$155,855	\$152,025	\$148,372	\$141,363	\$135,649
∞	\$169,590	\$160,667	\$157,530	\$153,844	\$150,102	\$143,129	\$137,354
6	\$172,063	\$163,123	\$159,205	\$155,663	\$151,832	\$144,895	\$139,059
10	\$174,536	\$165,579	\$160,880	\$157,482	\$153,562	\$146,661	\$140,764
11	\$177,009	\$168,035	\$162,555	\$159,301	\$155,292	\$148,427	\$142,469
12	\$179,482	\$170,491	\$164,230	\$161,120	\$157,022	\$150,193	\$144,174

2021-2022 SALARY SCHEDULE (1)

			Elementary	lementary Athletic	Subj. Supvsr. 11 Mo.	Asst. Princ.	Asst. Princ.
	High School	Middle School	Principal 11 Mo.	Director	VP, Middle School	High School	Middle School
Step	Principal 12 Mo.	Principal 12 Mo.	VP, HS 12 Mo.	12 Mo.	11 Mo.	10 Mo.	10 Mo.
2							
3							
4							
2	New Guide Starts Here						
9	\$172,481	\$165,829	\$163,138	\$161,233	\$155,416	\$148,697	\$142,925
7	\$174,709	\$168,149	\$165,286	\$163,243	\$157,263	\$150,621	\$144,570
∞	\$176,937	\$170,469	\$167,434	\$165,253	\$159,936	\$152,545	\$146,215
6	\$179,165	\$172,789	\$169,582	\$167,263	\$161,513	\$154,469	\$147,860
10	\$181,393	\$175,109	\$171,730	\$169,273	\$163,630	\$156,393	\$149,505
11	\$183,621	\$177,429	\$173,878	\$171,283	\$165,477	\$158,317	\$151,150
12	\$185,849	\$179,750	\$175,031	\$173,293	\$166,990	\$160,241	\$152,795

## NEW 2021-2022 SALARY SCHEDULE (2)

			Elementary	Athletic	Subj. Supvsr. 11 Mo.	Asst. Princ.	Asst. Princ.
	High School	Middle School	Principal 11 Mo.	Director	VP, Middle School	High School	Middle School
Step	Principal 12 Mo.	Principal 12 Mo.	VP, HS 12 Mo.	12 Mo.	11 Mo.	10 Mo.	10 Mo.
Н	\$154,370	\$144,715	\$148,110	\$142,888	\$140,385	\$132,981	\$127,410
2	\$156,770	\$147,181	\$149,785	\$144,707	\$142,115	\$134,747	\$129,115
ĸ	\$159,170	\$149,647	\$151,460	\$146,526	\$143,845	\$136,513	\$130,820
4	\$161,570	\$152,113	\$153,135	\$148,345	\$145,575	\$138,279	\$132,525
2	\$163,970	\$154,579	\$154,810	\$150,164	\$147,305	\$140,045	\$134,230
9	\$166,370	\$157,045	\$156,485	\$151,983	\$149,035	\$141,811	\$135,935
7	\$168,770	\$159,511	\$158,160	\$153,802	\$150,765	\$143,577	\$137,640
∞	\$171,170	\$161,977	\$159,835	\$155,621	\$152,495	\$145,343	\$139,345
6	\$173,570	\$164,443	\$161,510	\$157,440	\$154,225	\$147,109	\$141,050
10	\$175,970	\$166,909	\$163,185	\$159,259	\$155,955	\$148,875	\$142,755
11	\$178,370	\$169,375	\$164,860	\$161,078	\$157,685	\$150,641	\$144,460
12	\$181,073	\$172,041	\$166,535	\$162,897	\$159,415	\$152,407	\$146,165

2022-2023 SALARY SCHEDULE (1)

				(=) == a == == ==			
			Elementary	Athletic	Subj. Supvsr. 11 Mo.	Asst. Princ.	Asst. Princ.
	High School	Middle School	Principal 11 Mo.	Director	VP, Middle School	High School	Middle School
Step	Principal 12 Mo.	Principal 12 Mo.	VP, HS 12 Mo.	12 Mo.	11 Mo.	10 Mo.	10 Mo.
7							
æ							
4							
2	New Guide Starts Here						
9	\$173,772	\$167,580	\$165,090	\$164,183	\$158,495	\$151,647	\$144,834
7	\$176,000	\$169,900	\$167,283	\$166,193	\$160,342	\$153,571	\$146,479
∞	\$178,228	\$172,220	\$169,386	\$168,203	\$162,189	\$155,495	\$148,124
6	\$180,456	\$174,540	\$171,534	\$170,213	\$164,036	\$157,419	\$149,769
10	\$182,684	\$176,860	\$173,682	\$172,223	\$165,613	\$159,343	\$151,414
11	\$184,912	\$179,180	\$175,830	\$174,233	\$167,730	\$161,267	\$153,059
12	\$187,140	\$181,500	\$177,978	\$176,243	\$169,940	\$163,191	\$154,704

## NEW 2022-2023 SALARY SCHEDULE (2)

			Elementary	Athletic	Subj. Supvsr. 11 Mo.	Asst. Princ.	Asst. Princ.
	High School	Middle School	Principal 11 Mo.	Director	VP, Middle School	High School	Middle School
Step	Principal 12 Mo.	Principal 12 Mo.	VP, HS 12 Mo.	12 Mo.	11 Mo.	10 Mo.	10 Mo.
1	\$155,170	\$146,226	\$150,535	\$144,746	\$142,755	\$135,351	\$128,757
7	\$157,670	\$148,662	\$152,210	\$146,565	\$144,485	\$137,108	\$130,462
m	\$160,170	\$151,098	\$153,885	\$148,384	\$146,215	\$138,865	\$132,167
4	\$162,670	\$153,534	\$155,560	\$150,203	\$147,945	\$140,622	\$133,872
2	\$165,170	\$155,970	\$157,235	\$152,022	\$149,675	\$142,379	\$135,577
9	\$167,670	\$158,406	\$158,910	\$153,841	\$151,405	\$144,136	\$137,282
7	\$170,170	\$160,842	\$160,585	\$155,660	\$153,135	\$145,893	\$138,987
∞	\$172,670	\$163,278	\$162,260	\$157,479	\$154,865	\$147,650	\$140,692
6	\$175,170	\$165,714	\$163,935	\$159,298	\$156,595	\$149,407	\$142,397
10	\$177,670	\$168,150	\$165,610	\$161,117	\$158,325	\$151,164	\$144,102
11	\$180,170	\$170,586	\$167,285	\$162,936	\$160,055	\$152,921	\$145,807
12	\$182,670	\$173,022	\$168,960	\$164,755	\$161,785	\$154,678	\$147,512